Minutes of the Nevada State Legislatare

Assembly Committee on JUDICIARY v/
Date._.March 11, 1981 Lot
Page:

MEMBERS PRESENT: Chairman Stewart
Vice. Chairman Sader
Mr. Thompson

Miss Foley

- Mr. Beyer
Mr. Price
Mr. Chaney
Mr. Malone
Mrs. Cafferata
Mrs. Ham

Mr. Banner
MEMBERS ABSENT: None

GUESTS PRESENT: Frank Daykin, Legislative Counsel

Lynn C. Jasmine, Solicitation Review Board,
City of Reno '

John R. Petty, Asst. City Attorney, Reno

Janice G. Pine, City of Reno

Shannon Foley

William Swackhamer, Secretary of State

Esther Nicholson

Chairman Stewart called the meeting to order at 8:05 a.m. and
asked first for testimony on SB 150.

SB 150: Replaces "and/or" with an appropriate term
in Nevada Revised Statutes.

Frank Daykin, Legislative Counsel, stated that this is a bill
which arose by virtue of Chapter 220 of NRS. He continued by
saying that the Supreme Court of Nevada has described the term
"and/or" as inherently ambiguous, although despite its use in

a particular statute, the statute was nevertheless comprehensible.
Through running a print-out from the computer data base, it ap-
pears there are about 5 places in NRS in which this term occurs,

.two of which are in inter-state compacts adopted verbatim by the

A Form 70

Legislature and which cannot be changed. The other three in-
stances appear in SB 150. Mr. Daykin indicated the problem
when "and/or" occurs is does it mean "and"; does it mean "or";
does it mean,as in "(a) and/or (b)", (a) or (b) or both? Each
form was reviewed and the term was changed to reflect what the
intent of the language was. Mr. Daykin briefly outlined those
as they appear in the bill.

Mrs. Ham pointed out that at page 2, line 45 a bracket was
left out. Mr. Daykin noted that and indicated he would have
that taken care of.

714
(Committee Minutes)
50 <>




P

Minutes of the Nevada State Legislature

Assembly Committee MM&RY

Date:__ March 11, 1981

Page:

Chairman Stewart then asked if at page 1, line 19, the words
"or both" were actually necessary. Mr. Daykin stated he had
inserted those words as excess of caution since it appeared
it might become necessary to cover both documents mentioned
in the event arguments of interpretation might occur.

Chairman Stewart then asked why at page 2 the word "such" had
been taken out in a number of places and replaced with "this"
or "the". Mr. Daykin stated that "such" properly means "of
this kind" and the terms "such" and "said" are often used in
statutes and quoted Thomas Jefferson as saying in refereﬂce

to the endless "saids, aforesaids" in British statutes, ". . .
only succeed in rendering more obscure what they seek to clarify."”

Since there was not further testimony on SB 150, Chairman Stewart
proceeded to testimony on AB 232.

AB 232: Clarifies age of and eliminates citizen-
ship requirement for directors of corpor-
ation.

Assemblyman Bob Sader, District 32, stated he sponsored this
bill at the request of two law firms in the Reno area, both

of which do a lot of corporate work. He summarized the intent
of the bill by saying that AB 232 will (1) lower the age of

a person who could be a director in a corporation and (2) re-
move the requirement that one of the directors of a corporation
must be a resident of the State of Nevada or citizen of the
United States.

Mr. Sader indicated that the first alteration merely updates
the statute to conform with the new age of majority. The
existing language says "of full age", which presumably means
the age of majority. Mr. Sader pointed out that the age of
majority for drinking is 21 and the age of majority for signing
contracts is 18. Therefore, the age 18 was inserted instead

of the existing language.

A Form 70

The second alteration was made due to the fact that in the case

of Canadian corporations or people from other states wanting to
incorporate in Nevada. Mr. Sader commented that the existing
requirement makes it necessary for these people to have a resident
of the State of Nevada on their corporate board -- someone un-
known to them and with no relation to their business. He pointed
out the wide use of dummy incorporators, where a legal secretary
or some other person is listed on the books as an incorporator in
order to meet the requirement of three individuals.

=3
b2

(Committee Minutes)
ne  <p>

1




O

L A Form 70

Minutes of the Nevada State Legislature
Assembly Committee on... JURICIARY
Date:.._.March 11, 1981

Page:

Mr. Sader-felt that an individual listed as an incorporator or
director and having no relationship to the business who is
simply there to satisfy statutory formality is unwise, exposing
that person to some limited liability. This amendment would
satisfy that problem.

On a gquestion from Mr. Beyer, Mr. Sader stated that in the case
of a Canadian corporation wanting to be incorporated in the
State of Nevada, in order to satisfy the corporate requirement
all that is necessary is to find a secretary in a law firm or
someone else with no relationship to the business to be listed
on the books. He commented that this dummy director could

end up being sued and would have further liability through not
taking part in the corporate affairs.

Bill Swackhamer, Secretary of State, testified in favor of this
bill and commented that several Canadian corporations had come

to Nevada and upon finding that under Nevada law they were re-
quired to have a United States citizen in their corporation, they
simply went to another state where that was not required. He
indicated that there was not any particularly good reason for
requiring a citizen to be on the board of a Canadian corporation.
He also noted the advantage of conforming the language of the
full age to the current age of majority.

Mrs. Cafferata asked if there were a lot of foreign corporations
in Nevada. Mr. Price and Mr. Swackhamer both commented that

there is quite a bit of Canadian interest and a number of Canadian
corporations. Mr. Swackhamer pointed out that any other nation
could take advantage of this.

Since there was no further testimony on this bill, the Chairman
called for testimony on AJR 24.

AJR 24: Proposes to amend Nevada Constitution to
allow raffles for charity.

Chairman Stewart stated that this bill was introduced at the

request of Assemblyman Mello, who indicated the problem had

been mentioned by several charitable and service organizations
that have raffles. Mr. Stewart pointed out that across the
State of Nevada on almost any day, there are raffles being held.
This bill would amend the Constitutional provision prohibiting
those raffles and allow them to be held by charitable organiza-
tions. He noted that Mr. Mello had not been notified of this
hearing and had several people who wished to testify. Therefore,
a second hearing would be scheduled on AJR 24.

716

(Committee Minutes)

N0 <>




@

A Form 70

Minutes of the Nevada State Legislature
Assembly Committee on.......JJUDICIARY
Date:....Maxrch.ll, 1981

Page: 4

Lynn Jasmine of the Solicitation Review Board for the City of Reno
stated she was an active volunteer in a number of charitable
organizations. She felt a need for this amendment for a number
of reasons. First, the charitable organizations, mainly volun-
teer, provide a number of very much needed services and should
the city, county or state governments be required to purchase
these services, it would be a tremendous cost and burden. She
stated these organizations are currently engaged in raffle and
drawing type activities. Some know this is prohibited and some
do not. She stated this is a very viable method of raising funds
needed for their activities, such as in youth programs.

Second, there is a problem in terms of enforcement. Ms. Jasmine
noted that many of the pillars of the community have been in-
volved in these activities, creating an enforcement problem.

Finally, changing this law would benefit the State in general.
Ms. Jasmine felt there wouldn't be any groups or organizations
harmed by changing this.

Mrs. Cafferata asked if the words "entire proceeds" meant that
costs could not be allowed from the proceeds. Chairman Stewart
suggested that be looked into.

Mr. Stewart asked what the Solicitation Review Board does. Ms.
Jasmine stated the Board questions applicants on whether the
raffle is being held as a part of the fund raising efforts. If

it is, then the applicant is advised on the statutes and are
denied the application for the raffle. She indicated the majority
of applicants say no and the Board is not an enforcement board,
but a review board.

On a question by Mr. Beyer about raffling table decorations,

Ms. Jasmine suggested the committee might want to address itself
to the interpretation of a charitable organization and the word-
ing used. She noted there are organizations that would be ques-
tionable in terms of charitable, such as the PTA when raffling

. handmade items to provide funds to buy playground equipment.

She added that the term "non-profit" might create problems in
that there may be non-profit corporations not for charitable
purposes.

Miss Foley suggested the use of IRS tax classifications.

Mr. Price expressed interest in the reason lotteries were op-
posed to begin with. Mrs. Cafferata felt the gaming people

were opposed to this. Mr. Price felt it was bingo they were
opposed to and commented on a senior citizen game being busted
by the Gaming Control Board. Mr. Price suggested it be re-
searched and indicated he would have that done. ' o\

(Committee Minutes)
6 <>




Minutes of the Nevada State Legislature
Assembly Committee on._.. . JJURICTARY
Date:....Maxch.11l.. 1981

Page: 2

John Petty, Assistant Reno City Attorney, stated he gives legal
advice to the Solicitation Review Board. He concurred in Ms.
Jasmine's comments. He stated a problem arises when applicants
appear before the Board and are denied permits on the basis
that they are going to hold a raffle or lottery. He pointed
out that these people are upset when they can see every day
raffles being held in the business sector, banks, the gaming
industry or other charitable organizations. He felt it strange
that if a provision exists prohibiting these activities, there
is either no enforcement or selective enforcement. He noted

it would be embarrassing or hard to enforce this provision
since pillars of the community are involved in many instances.
Mr. Petty stated the support of his office in allowing lotteries
for charitable purposes. He stated his office would also sup-
port a blanket repeal of this statute.

Mr. Petty stated that the Solicitation Review Board has a broad
definition of "charitable organization" as including those who
add to or benefit some sort of group. He noted there is a re-
striction on the applications, requiring the charitable organi-
zations to have a tax exempt status under the IRS standards.

Chairman Stewart asked if a door prize would come under the term
"lottery". Mr. Petty stated that pursuant to NRS 462.010 et seq.
the definition of "lottery" is very specific. He felt a door
prize could fall under that definition.

Mrs. Ham asked if the casinos are in violation with their raffles.
Mr. Petty felt they were, but it is not enforced.

Miss Foley asked about tickets handed out for door prizes where
they are not paid for. 1If the chance to win is not paid for,

is that considered the same as buying the ticket? Mr. Petty
stated the interpretation is that if the element of consider-
ation is removed, then it is not a lottery or raffle. He noted,
however, that an attempt to create a scheme removing the element
of cqnsideration is considered a facade and prosecuted.

" Janice Pine, Reno City Councilwoman, stated that the Reno City

A Form 70

Council is unanimously in support of AJR 24. She indicated she
would not go on record as saying the City Council would support
the repeal of all lotteries. She stated their interest is pri-
marily in raffle tickets sold by non-profit organizations and
they did not discuss the raffles held by casinos. She brought
the committee's attention to SB 312 which removes the title of
"convicted person" from those selling raffle tickets and caught.

Mr. Sader asked if the Council had gone into the difference be-

‘tween charity and other non-profit organizations. Ms. Pine

stated they did not. She indicated they were primarily con-
718

e <>

(Committee Minutes)




Minutes of the Nevada State Legislature

Assembly Committee on JUDICIARY
Date:._March 11, 1981

Page:....0

cerned with situations involving the Girl Scouts, Lion's Club,
Elk's Club, etc., who apply for permits with tickets already
printed and when denied a permit, sell the tickets anyway.

Miss Foley pointed out that the language of the bill does not
speak to the people selling tickets or conducting the raffles,
but only to where the proceeds go. She then asked if the raffle
tickets in casinos are actually purchased or just given away.
Ms. Pine felt they were given with a slot jackpot.

Esther Nicholson came forward with questions for the committee
as follows: With reference to the language that says that the
Legislature may authorize a lottery or allow the sale of lottery
tickets, does that mean that the State could, in line with Sen-
ator Faiss' and Senator Raggio's resolution, allow the State

to set up a State lottery? Chairman Stewart and Mr. Sader felt
it did. Ms. Nicholson also questioned whether all senior citi-
zen activities would be considered charity. She felt there was
a number of areas in the bill which need to be clarified. She
suggested both the Senate and Assembly Judiciary Committees
meet jointly and consider these areas. Ms. Nicholson further
indicated that her reading of SB 312 indicated the bill removed
the entire statute prohibiting lotteries and not just the lang-
uage referring to the "convicted persons".

Chairman Stewart once again indicated there would be another
meeting scheduled to hear further testimony on AJR '24.

Mr. Sader pointed out that in the sections of the statutes
dealing with corporate law, there are definitions or distinctions
made for types of organizations covering a number of areas. Mr.
Sader felt the question was what areas does "charitable organiza-
tions" cover. Mr. Stewart felt there might be further definitions
contained in the statutes.

Mrs. Cafferata addressed the question of whether the State may
authorize a lottery, stating that there is a difference between

_a State lottery and the Legislature versus private enterprise

A Form 70

doing it. She felt that should be looked into and clarified.

Assemblyman Price passed out a newspaper article, EXHIBIT A,
and referred to the testimony given on March 10 on AB 178. He
indicated he had asked the gentleman from Fish & Game if he
could recall any incident in the southern part of the state
which had enough significance to appear in the newspaper. Mr.
Price reminded the committee that the witness indicated he had
been the head game warden for 8 years and responded no to the
guestion.

719
(Committee Minutes)
o <>




Minutes of the Nevada State Legislature

Assembly Committee on_._ JUDICIARY
Date:... March_ 1l., 1981
Page: 1

Mr. Price then drew the committee's attention to the two articles
which appear in EXHIBIT A. He couldn't understand this gentle-
man not remembering a problem with his agency which appeared in
the newspaper on March 9. He stressed the fact that the Legis-
lature does not have the time to research every subject which
arises, nor does it have the facilities. He felt that the Legis-
lature should be able to depend upon the agencies to be completely
truthful in their testimony at the hearings. He pointed out that
in the past, if an agency was not in favor of a bill, they would
attach a substantial fiscal note. It was as a result of this

and as a result of the Chairman of the NIC appearing before the
Legislature and being less than truthful, that the signs present
in the committee room now became procedure: i.e. witnesses must
be sworn under oath before testifying.

Mr. Price then told the committee about the game wardens arresting
and handcuffing and individual without the authority to do that.
He indicated that it was a citizen's arrest and they should have
notified the police department and asked for assistance. Mr.
Price asked that the bill be brought back to the committee as

well as the gentleman who testified on March 10 to discuss their
conduct in front of the committees and the way they use their
authority now.

Mr. Thompson moved AB 178 be re-referred to committee, seconded
by seconded by Mr. Malone, and carried unanimously by the com-
mittee.

Since there was no further business, Chairman Stewart adjourned
the meeting at 9:03 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,

A Form 70

e L )
P
(Commiitee Minutes)

e <>




6lst NEVADA LEGISLATURE
ASSEMBLY JUDICIARY COMMITTEE
LEGISLATION ACTION

DATE: March 11, 1981

SUBJECT: AB 178: Requires game wardens to enforce
additional criminal statutes.

MOTION: _
DO PASS AMEND INDEFINITELY POSTPONE
RECONSIDER RE-REFER TO COMMITTEE XX
MOVED BY: Thompson SECONDED BY: Malone

AMENDMENT :

MOVED BY: SECONDED BY:
AMENDMENT :
MOVED BY: SECONDED BY:
MOTION AMEND AMEND

VOTE: YES NO YES NO YES  NO

Thompson XX

Foley XX

Beyer XX

Price XX

Sader XX

Stewart XX
Chaney XX

Malone XX

Cafferata_XX

Ham XX

Banner XX

TALLY: 11 _ _
ORIGINAL MOTION: Passed XXX Defeated Withdrawn
AMENDED & PASSED AMENDED & DEFEATED
AMENDED & PASSED . AMENDED & DEFEATED
ATTACHED TO MINUTES OF March 11, 1981

7




EXHIBIT A

[ Police State'l‘actics T

g
" NotFor Nevada -~ ‘..é l g*ig ii'g
smpremoamns | msmﬁ i
S Enmans & L s £
sloreement ageas. ey é g

- g TR =§i§
lllgiiié§§r£ !‘!gz

‘fﬂ"" l’; b
1 lﬁ!a 1sf
.iggﬁ il i!{i i

bt
gza Jils ggma .+
13 gﬂ ?ﬂ i
8! in: %ﬂ:ig

A,..,.,.,.;,...,.........;..;.,,.;;;.z.;;,;—,. '*g L g

I fiee tiwn to z 3
1o Boa._tiws o & .M-Q;W.ﬂ'm:h i i } i ﬂi ﬂgé
B Ly L gs!.diﬁiﬁléﬁ

JJ--”
P --m.‘l-. A.J —M—.

a cusés gamef -ajgents o
preity pet

.....




